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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Treanor House is essentially a Greek Revival plantation house with
a Gothic Reyival portico. The house itself is simple and straightforward.
On the outside it is two stories high, with an attic under a low hip roof.
Contained inside is a four-over-four arrangement of rooms with a central
stair hall. The front facade is three bays wide and is symmetrically
arranged around a centered front doorway on the ground-floor level and a
centered balcony and doorway on the second-floor level. The front facade is
prefaced by a full-width, two-story-high portico. To the rear of the house
are attached gabled ells and additions. The sides of the house are four bays
deep (two bays to each of the end rooms). Two exterior brick chimneys are
symmetrically placed at each end of the house. Construction of the house is
frame throughout, upon a foundation of brick piers. The exterior is covered
on three sides by plain clapboards; the front facade is sheathed with smooth
flush siding. The interior is finished with painted plaster on lathe high-
lighted by painted wood trim.  The roof is surfaced with seamed sheet metal
painted red.

The detailing and ornamentation of the main body of the Treanor House
are Greek Reyival in style. The front doorway is a typical, trabeated Greek
Revival composition: the front door i{s flanked on eijther side by architrave
moldings and sidelights and is framed above by a full-width, 1ighted transom.
The balcony doorway duplicates this front doorway at a slightly reduced scale.
The front windows on the first floor are framed in architrave molding identi-
cal to that used around the front door; second-floor windows are trimmed with
simpler architrave molding. A1l front windows have six-over-six sash and are
flanked by wooden blinds painted green. The front wall is finished in flush,
tongue-and-groove weatherboarding. Side walls and the rear wall are covered
with plain clapboards meeting at slender corner boards. Side windows have
nine-over-nine sash and are framed by simple architrave molding. The four
brick end chimneys are stuccoed.

The interior arrangement and finish of the Treanor House are also Greek
Revival in style. Rooms are arranged four-over-four with a central stair
hall. The rooms to the Teft of the central stair hall (to the left of the
front door) are similarly sized and detailed, and are connected by double
sliding doors. Rooms to the right of the stair hall are similarly detailed
but differently sized; the front room is larger, and the rear room corres-
pondingly smaller. Windows and doorways throughout are framed with shoul-
dered architrave molding. Fireplaces have simple architrave mantels sup-
ported by plain wooden pilasters. Doors have four panels arranged two-over-
two. Baseboards are beaded, and there are no continuous cornice moldings
or chair rails. The stairway has an octagonally-shaped newel post with a
turned cap. Walls and ceilings are painted plaster over lathe. The floors
are planked.
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The front portico of the Treanor House is Gothic Revival in style. The
portico consists of eight wood columns rising from brick foundations below to
shallow, eliptical arches above. The columns are exceedingly slender in pro-
portion and quatrefoil in section. The spandrels of the arches are punctured
by "carpenter" jigsaw cut-outs. The cornice features a row of delicate den-
tils between the architrave and the frieze. The eight columns form seven
bays, with three equally-sized bays on either side of a wider (about twice as
wide) central bay.

The grounds around the Treanor House have majntained much of the charac-
ter of nineteenth-century landscaping. Trees -- primarily oaks, evergreens,
hollies and magnolias -- and lawn surround the house. To the front is an
unpaved but curbed semi-circular driveway and a long, straight, concrete walk
aimed directly at the front door. To the rear, traces of the original formal
gardens are still evident.

The house as it stands today is largely intact, with only minor additions
and changes in details. Additijons to the rear of the house, made in the second
half of the nineteenth century, include a kitchen, a long porch, storage rooms,
a stairway, and servants' quarters. On the front of the house, the balcony
railing and balustrade are possibly replacements for the originals; they are
identical to the railing and balustrade of the porch added to the rear of the
house in the late-nineteenth century. Inside the house, the fireplaces have
been blocked off and space heaters installed.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Treanor House is significant historically, architecturally, and due
to its Tandscape, as an example of an antebellum home in the midst of the
academic community of Athens, Georgia. Historically, it was the home of a
number of Athens' most illustrious citizens, most notably the Cobbs and the
Rutherfords; and architecturally, it is a fine example of the eclectic revi-
valistic movement of the mid-nineteenth-century architecture in a city where
many contemporaries were building Greek Revival "temples." Similar examples
of houses of this adaptation can be found scattered in the hinterlands of
Georgia, but this remains the only one of this style in Athens. The historic
landscape has been preserved as best as possible in the midst of twentieth-
century encroachments.

The building date of the Treanor House is shrouded in mystery, as the
original owner, Colonel John Addison Cobb (1783-1855), a wealthy planter and
former legislator, did not record his deeds. Traditionally, the house is
said to have been a wedding gift from Cobb and his wife (Sarah Rootes, 1792-
1865) to their daughter Laura (1818-1888) at her marriage March 23, 1841, to
Williams Rutherford, Jr. (1818-1896). The Cobbs and the Rutherfords were
1iving at the same household in the 1850 Census with Rutherford's real-estate
holdings valued at $5,000, a fair value for a house of this size in those
days, as judged by tax digests of town property.

The Cobb family was described by the late Dr. Robert Preston Brooks in
1930 in the Dictionary of American Biography as one "which by reason of its
wealth, social prestige and the abiTity o% %ts members, occupied a secure
position in the small group of planters who dominated the political life of
the South throughout the antebellum period."

John A. and Sarah Cobb's most famous children were Howell Cobb (1815-
1868), who was Speaker of the United States House of Representatives from
1849-1851, governor of Georgia from 1851 to 1853, and secretary of the treas-
ury under President Buchanan; and Thomas R.R. Cobb (1823-1862), who was a
well-known lawyer, author of the Digest of the Statute Laws of the State of
Georgia (1851) and The Code of the State of Georgia (T1863), major achieve-
ments in Taw prior to his death on the battlefield at Fredericksburg.

[continued
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After the death of John A. Cobb in 1855, the Rutherfords came into full
possession of the house and sold it on July 1, 1857, to Henry L. Brittain
for $2,000. The site then included 25 acres. The deed references a survey of
the area done in 1836 which indicates a possible settlement date for this area
of the county.

Rutherford was a graduate of the University of Georgia and taught mathema-
tics there. It is said that he sold the house in order to move on campus,
perhaps due to a regulation requiring professors to 1ive on campus, as he
became a professor there in 1856, the year before he sold the house.

During the almost 20 years the Rutherfords occupied the house, the most
noted event was the birth of their daughter Mildred Lewis in 1851. "“Miss
Millie," as she was known, became one of Athens' most noted women. She organ-
ized the local chapter of the United Daughters of the Confederacy following
Reconstruction and later traveled the country in defense of the "01d South"
in opposition to the "New South," as viewed by prophets such as Henry W. Grady
and Clark Howell. She had a great deal to do with popularizing the romanti-
cized image of 1ife in the South later depicted in Gone with the Wind, and
gave her speeches while often dressed in a hoop skirt. She was also director
of the Tocal girls' school, the Lucy Cobb Institute. After her death in 1928
the United Daughters of the Confederacy placed a marker in her memory in front
of the house, which they called "Rutherford Hall."

Henry L. Brittain (1798-1890) was 59 years old when he purchased the site
and he lived until age 92, presumably dying in this house. His daughter, Sue
Brittain Martin (1844-1939) inherited the house, known to many still living as
“The Brittain Place." Mrs. Martin sold it, including 25 acres, in 1905 to E.G.
Whitehead of Athens, who lived there briefly. He transferred it in 1911 to
Mrs. Susie M. Whitehead and she, in 1912, transferred it to A.W. Ashford of
Watkinsville.

Mr. Alexander Woodson Ashford (1852-1930), a wealthy merchant of Watkins-
ville, Georgia, obtained use of the home for his four sons while they attended
the University of Georgia. The house became a private family dormitory where
the boys would spend the week, with the aid of servants, and then return home
to Watkinsville for the weekend lest they party too much in Athens. Long after
all the sons left school, Ashford sold the house in 1929 to James C. Maxey of
Watkinsville, who in turn sold it in 1935 to Mrs. Kate McKinley Treanor, widow
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of Edward D. Treanor. After her death in 1946, her daughters, the Misses Helen
and Sapelo Treanor, have lived in the house, especially more so recently, since
both have retired. Miss Sapelo Treanor taught foreign languages at both Val-
dosta Stat. College (then Georgia State Woman's College) and LaGrange College
before her retirement to Athens. Miss Helen Treanor, who lived in the house
with her mother, taught in the public schools of Athens and was principal of
Alps c:d Elementary before her retirement. Their brother Edward, after he
retired, also lived at the house. Katherine Treanor Cobb and her husband,
Judge Carlisle Cobb (descendant of Colonel John A. Cobb) lived in the cottage
in the side yard that was created by merging the old kitchen and office.

The Treanor family has maintained the house in much the same style as their
predecessors, keeping it as a visible link to the grandeur of the antebellum
South.

From a purely architectural point of view, the Treanor House is significant
because it represents popular eclectic and revivalistic movements of mid-nine-
teenth-century American architectural history. Moreover, it combines two of
these movements -- the Greek Revival and the Gothic Revival -- which were gener-
ally considered to be stylistically and thematically antagonistic. The Treanor
House combines in a single design (there is no reason to believe that it was
anything other than a single, integral design) the popular Southern Plantation-
style Greek Revival and the vernacular or carpenter Gothic Revival. In doing
so, it brings together the two major revivalistic styles of the early-nineteenth
century in a manner that anticipated the eclecticism of the later-nineteenth cen-
tury. The Treanor House is, thus, an interesting and relatively rare amalgam
of mid-nineteenth-century architectural styles and movements. And yet, although
there are few others Tike it in the state, in nearby Oglethorpe County there is
a nearly identical house (the Edwards-Byrd-Haston House), and in William Colum-
bus Davis' The Columns of Athens (1951) there are several documented instances
of a similar eclectic melding of seemingly disparate styles of mid-century, all
of which suggests that the Treanor House was part of a larger movement rather
than an idiosyncracy. Indeed, one might say that the attentuated columns of
the front portico of the Treanor House represent an important vernacular expres-
sion of the mid-nineteenth-century Gothic style developing in Georgia against
the earlier and more pervasive Greek Revival background.
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